



UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA

PRESIDENT'S OFFICE PUBLIC SERVICE MANAGEMENT AND GOOD GOVERNANCE



REPORT OF THE 1st NATIONAL CONFERENCE FOR MONITORING AND EVALUATION WEEK

Main Theme: Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning for Advancing Socio-Economic Transformations: Opportunities and Challenges Prepared by: -

President's Office, Public Service Management and Good Governance Government City Utumishi Street P. O. Box 670 DODOMA

In Partnership with:-Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA) P. O. Box 106268, **DAR ES SALAAM**

Dodoma aerial view



TABLE OF CONTENTS

List of Abbreviations and Acronyms	
Foreword	4
Chapter One	7
1.0. Introduction	7
1.1. Rationale Of The Conference	7
1.2. Conference Preparation	8
1.3. Conference Participants	9
Chapter Two	
2.0 Conference Operations	13
2.1. Opening Address	13
2.2. Themes Of Papers Presented	15
2.3. Professional Training	17
2.4. Panel Discussion	21
Chapter Three	
3.0 Discussion, Opinions And Challenges	23
3.1 Participants Discussion Questions and Answers	23
3.2 Challenges	25
Chapter Four	
4.0 Recommendations, Instructions And Resolutions	27
4.1. Participation Recommendations	27
4.2. Government Instructions And Directives	28

onterence Resolutions/Take Av

VS

Chapter Five		31
	5.0 Vote of thanks announcement of 2023 MEL week	31
	5.1 Closing Speech and way forward	31
	5.2 Learning	32
Chap	Chapter Six	
	6.0 Conclusion	33
6.0. (Conclusion	33
7.0. A	Appendices	35
•	Appendix 1: Conference evaluation	35
	Appendix 2: Summary of recommendations	37
	Appendix 3: List of Participants	44
8.0. <i>A</i>	Audit Report And Financial Statements	59



LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

AfrEA	The African Evaluation Association
CAG	Controller and Auditor General
CSOs	Covil Society Organizations
DIME	Development Impact Evaluation
DUCE	Dar Es Salaam College of Education
ICT	Information Communication and Technology
KPIs	Key Performance Indicators
LGA	Local Government Organizations
MDA	Ministries, Departments and Agencies
M&EL	Monitoring and Evaluation Learning
MOFAIC	Ministry of Foreign Affairs
MP	Member of Parliament
NaCoNGO	National Council of NGOs
NMB	National Microfinance Bank
NBC	National Bank of Commerce
OUT	Open University of Tanzania
РМО	Prime Minister Office
POPSMGG	President's Office Public Service Management and Good
	Governance
PORALG	President's Office Regional Administration and Local
	Government
RAS	Regional Administration Secretariat
RITA	Registration, Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency
SDGs	Sustainable Development Goals
TanEA	Tanzania Evaluatio Association
TCB	Tanzania Commercial Bank
TFS	Tanzania Forestry Services
TMDA	Tanzania Medicines Authority
TPSF	Tanzania Private Sector Foundation
UCSAF	Universal Communications Fund
UN	United Nations
UNICEF	United Nations Children's Fund
WB	World Bank

FOREWORD

The President's Office, Public Service Management and Good Governance (POPSMGG) working in partnership with Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA) to organize the 1st Monitoring and Evaluation Learning week in Tanzania since ever. The 1st M&EL week main Theme "Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning for Advancing Socio-Economic Transformations" is in the recognition of Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) as an important profession in supporting effective development management as the country's policies, projects and programmes are geared towards attaining National Development Vision 2025, African Union Agenda 2063, and Sustainable Development Goals 2030. The objectives of the M&EL week conference were to bring together for the first time the M&E professionals and practitioners to dialogue and share experiences, promote M&E practice and profession, and advocate for the demand and use of monitoring and evaluations in the government.

Participation of a wide range of M&E stakeholders at the conference including the Government, Private Sector, and the Academia shared a light for the need of strengthening M&E profession and practice so that it increases its contribution on managing development for results (MD4R). Tanzania Evaluation Association is committed to work with all stakeholders to embrace M&E including the Government, Parliament, Private Sector, CSOs, Development Partners, etc whom shares a common goal on MD4R.

We would like to thank the Government of Tanzania and all Development Partners whose support enabled the 1st M&EL week to be conducted successfully. It may not be possible to mention all the supporters here, we acknowledge the sponsorship by Tanzania Forest Reserve Agency, Tanzania Roads Agency (TANROADS), Universal Communications Fund (UCSAF), Registration, Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency (RITA), Tanzania Medicines and Drugs Authority (TMDA), National Bank of Commerce (NBC), Tanzania Commercial Bank (TCB), National Microfinance Bank (NMB) and Viettel (Halotel), Tanzania. We extend our appreciation to the distinguished keynote speakers, paper presenters, session chairs and all participants. Much appreciation to the organizing committee for their commitment and work for the success of this event. We express our gratitude to the Government through the POPSMGG for paving the way to strengthening monitoring and evaluation in the country.

Dr. Laurean J. P. Ndumbaro Permanent Secretary President's Office-Public Service Management

Prof. Deus Ngaruko Board Chairman, Tanzania Evaluation Association



1.0. INTRODUCTION

The first national conference for monitoring and evaluation week took place in Dodoma from 27 to 28 April 2022. This report provides an overview of the conference planning, management activities, paper presentations, discussions, recommendations and conclusions. Chapter one outlines the origins of organizing a Monitoring and Evaluation Learning (M&EL) conference and building an understanding of the real meaning and role of Monitoring and Evaluation. In addition, the scope of the forum, and the methods used to facilitate the forum are explained.

1.1. RATIONALE OF THE CONFERENCE

The Government's main responsibility is to ensure that social welfare is enhanced by improving access to essential social services such as health services. food security, infrastructure, quality education, protection and security. In providing these services the Government uses a variety of resources that require effective management to ensure that the value of the resources used is consistent with the results obtained. The Monitoring and Evaluation System is one of the most important tools in ensuring that resources are used effectively for the intended results. Thus, the source of Monitoring and Evaluation is in the determination of nations and governments around the world to plan, implement and manage policies and development plans for results (Results Based Management). This will make it possible for the government to be responsive to the stakeholders' demands, good governance, accountability, transparency, effectiveness, and delivery of services.

CHAPTER

ONE

Monitoring is a feature in the system that involves collecting data on the implementation of development projects (routine data) to get the realities of the implementation of various activities on a regular basis including Planning, Projects and Program for the intended purposes. This monitoring aims to identify challenges in project implementation in order to take appropriate action early to prevent impacts that could affect project / program outcomes. In addition, the Evaluation aims to measure the actual outcome of the planning, program, strategies, policies and project outcomes by comparing the expected outcomes with the evaluation criteria.

Monitoring and Evaluation is still a relatively young area in Government. However, the Government has continued to make various efforts to ensure that this area is improved and managed properly. Among other things, it has improved the structures of its Institutions by establishing M&EL Components and Units under the Policy and Planning Departments including the introduction of various guidelines. Despite all the Government's efforts in improving Monitoring and Evaluation issues, there is still a challenge of the lack of a culture of Monitoring and Evaluation in some Government Institutions. Thus, there is a need to leverage existing capacities to build a holistic M&E approach and develop a culture of evidence-based policy and decision making. One of the strategies to build that culture is to bring together the experts and stakeholders of Monitoring & Evaluation to share experiences and techniques to implement and manage M&E.

To that end, the Office of the President, Public Service Management and Good Governance (POPSMGG) in collaboration with the Tanzania Monitoring and Evaluation Professionals Association (TanEA) organized the first National Conference with the slogan "Accountability for Development". This conference was held on 27- 28 April, 2022 in the PSSSF conference hall, Makole, Dodoma and opened by Hon. Kassim Majaliwa Majaliwa, Prime Minister of the United Republic of Tanzania and finally closed by Hon. Deogratius Ndejembi, Deputy Minister of State, Office of the President, Public Service Management and Good Governance.

1.2. CONFERENCE PREPARATION

Tanzania Association of Monitoring and Evaluation Professionals (TanEA) came up with the idea of partnering with POPSMGG in organizing for the first time the Monitoring and Evaluation Week in Tanzania. The aim was to bring together experts and various stakeholders in Monitoring and Evaluation to share experiences and techniques in implementing and managing Monitoring

and Evaluation issues and ultimately strengthen the culture of conducting Monitoring and Evaluations in Tanzania. Due to the importance of the event, POPSMGG agreed to co-operate with TanEA and appointed a Monitoring and Evaluation Technical Committee which included members from the Office of the President - State House, PORALG, POPSMGG, Prime Minister's Office, Ministry of Finance and Planning, National Bureau of Statistics, Office of the Controller and Auditor General, Government Web Authority, Judicial Commission and Parliamentary Office. This committee was tasked with advising on how best to organize Monitoring and Evaluation Week.

1.3. CONFERENCE PARTICIPANTS

The conference brought together different category of participants which included M&E experts, government officers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDA), evaluators, policymakers, international development and aid organizations, academic/research institutions (academia, students, research fellows from University of Dodoma and Institute of Development Planning -College of Development Planning), non-governmental and civil society organizations (in M&E space). MDA participants comprised of Directors of Policy and Planning Departments, Assistant Directors and Officers from Division and Monitoring and Evaluation Units, Officials from Regional Secretariats (Dodoma, Singida, Iringa and Morogoro), Municipalities (Dodoma, Kongwa, Bahi, Chamwino, Mpwapwa, Kondoa, Iringa and Iringa Rural), Councils (Mvomero, Gairo, Morogoro Municipality, Kilosa, Municipal and Manyoni). Other local and international participants participated online.



By and large, the conference attracted 295equivalent to 98.3% participants out of the earmarked 300. Out of this number 31% were women and 69% men. Additionally, there were 18 submissions of papers (86%) out of the 21 expected (Appendix No. 1).

1.4. METHODS USED TO ORGANIZE THE CONFERENCE

In making the 1st MEL a success, the following methods were used: -

1.4.1 Preparatory Committee

The national organizing committee was formed with the aim of coordinating the preparations for M&EL Week. The Committee consisted 29 members (24 members from POPSMGG and five (5) from TanEA); In addition, TanEA entered into agreement with PlusMore Company which was responsible for providing expertise and experience in organizing and supervising the activities of Monitoring and Evaluation Week. The organizing committee in collaboration with Plusmore was involved in finding a venue for the conference, preparing the conference budget, organizing various sessions to discuss conference preparations including requesting conference facilitation from various stakeholders and organizations and preparing invitation letters. Map out and assess the best performing institutions in the area of Monitoring and Evaluation and thereafter provide them with awards.

1.4.2 Call for Abstracts Committee

The literature review committee grew to a total of six (6) members who are Mr. Hassan Kitenge and Ms. Sakina Mwinyimkuu (POPSMGG), Dr. Francis Mwaijande (Mzumbe University and TanEA-CAE), Prof. Deus Ngaruko (Open University of Tanzania), Dr. Almas Mazigo (DUCE), Dr. Mursali Millanzi (Mzumbe University). The committee was involved in receiving abstracts, analyzing and communicating with the earmarked presenters on areas that needed improvement and ultimately verifying their availability. Finally, a total of 18 abstracts were received and approved for writing full paper. All the 18 papers were presented in the conference. After this process was completed, the abstracts were slotted into the programme structure for development of the final conference programme.

1.4.3 Involvement of PlusMore in Coordination

Recognizing the contribution of the private sector especially in organizing major events involving multiple stakeholders, TanEA entered into an agreement with PlusMore which is a private company engaged in organizing and facilitating various events including governmental events. The company was involved in preparing the conference budget, developing and implementing conference fundraising strategies, duplicating all conference needs, finding the right service providers such as celebrities, waiters, ICT specialists and decorators. Activities done by PlusMore were coordinated by the National Organizing Committee.

1.4.4 Involving Institutions in Funding the Conference

In addition to 4.5m in the audited financial report, POPSMGG contributed 15m indirect costs related to the Guest of Honour, RC and Security committee, POPSMGG Minister delegation audited that followed Government audit practice. The initial conference planned for four (4) days at a cost of Tsh 200million. However, the conference was reduced to 2 days with a reduction of participants and some other events due to budget constraints. The total cost of the conference amounted to TZS 56,848,560 (US\$ 24,717) collected from sponsors and participation fee. However, it seemed practical to seek funding to make the forum a success rather than relying on participation fees. Various stakeholders of Monitoring and Evaluation including Viettel, UN Resident's Office, and Honorable Ambassadors from various countries were invited to the resource mobilization meeting that was held at the Bank of Tanzania, in Dar es Salaam. Letters were sent to stakeholders requesting for their participation and sponsorship to the event. Among the sponsoring institutions were Tanzania Forest Service Agency (TFS), Universal Communications Service Access Fund (UCSAF), Registration, Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency (RITA), Tanzania Medicines and Medical Devices Authority (TMDA), National Bank of Commerce (NBC), Tanzania Commercial Bank (TCB), Viettel (Halotel), NMB Bank PLC, United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), Tanzania Electrical, Mechanical and Electronics Services Agency (TEMESA), HOPECA, POPSMGG, UNICEF and ECO MAKAZI, See Appendix IV for more details.

1.4.5. Key Note Address

Keynote speakers composed of TanEA Chairman Prof. Deus Ngaruko, Mr. Ludovick Utouh-the former CAG and Executive Director of Wajibu Institute of Public Accountability (WIPA), APNODE Chairman, Hon. Joseph Kakunda (MP) and Urs Nagel from UNICEF Eastern and Southern Africa Regional Office, Nairobi. All the speakers underscored the importance of M&E and accountability in public/government institutions and cooperation between government and private sectors in M&E to economic transformation and development.



1.4.6. Prize Giving

A total of five (5) institutions were awarded prizes based on selection criteria for effectiveness in implementing and supervising Monitoring and Evaluation activities in their respective institutions. The selection of these organizations was due to the results of the Institutional Readiness Assessment in M&E. On the whole, government institutions seemed to be doing better than institutions in other sectors. The awards were presented to encourage the best performing institutions to continue doing so and to encourage other institutions to emulate and increase efforts in improving and fully implementing Monitoring and Evaluation activities in those institutions. Awarded institutions include the Tanzania Forest Services Agency (TFS), the Tanzania Roads Agency (TANROAD), Universal Communications Fund (UCSAF), Registration, Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency (RITA), Tanzania Medicines and Drugs Authority (TMDA) and E-GA.



In addition, in recognition of the contribution made by the sponsors in making the conference a success, the Organizing Committee prepared prizes for the stakeholders who contributed to the success of this activity. The sponsors were Tanzania Forest Reserve Agency, Tanzania Roads Agency (TANROADS), Universal Communications Fund (UCSAF), Registration, Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency (RITA), Tanzania Medicines and Drugs Authority (TMDA), National Bank of Commerce (NBC), Tanzania Commercial Bank (TCB), National Microfinance Bank (NMB) and Viettel (Halotel), Tanzania.

2.0 CONFERENCE OPERATIONS

This section describes the content of the conference which includes Opening, Themes, Seminars/workshops and discussions held during the Conference.

2.1. OPENING ADDRESS

The conference was opened by Hon. Kassim Majaliwa Majaliwa, Prime Minister of the United Republic of Tanzania. Other government officials were Hon. Jenister Mhagama, Minister of State, Office of the President, Public Service Management and Good Governance and Hon. Deogratius Ndejembi, Minister of State Office of the President - President, Public Service Management and Good Governance. Generally, all leaders emphasized the importance of improving and strengthening Monitoring and Evaluation in Government Institutions to achieve a National Vision aimed at Good Governance, Strong Economy and a Better Life for the People.



The opening session was preceded by an introductory remark from the Chairman of the Board of M&E Experts (TanEA), Professor Deus Ngaruko, who is also the Vice Chancellor of the University-Academic, Open University of Tanzania.





Permanent Secretary, President's Office Public Service Management and Good Governance (POPSMGG), Dr. Lauren. J. P Ndumbaro gave a brief overview of the welcome by introducing participants in front of the Leaders and thanked the official guest for agreeing to set aside time and come to open the Conference.

He also thanked the various Government and Private Institutions and Scholars from various universities and colleges for coming in large numbers to participate in the conference. He emphasized that the forum was an opportunity for them to share experiences and learn the basics of Monitoring and Evaluation. Finally, he welcomed Hon. Jenister. J. Mhagama,(MP), Minister of State, President's Office Public Service Management and Good Governance (POPSMGG).



Hon. Jenister Mhagama (MP) introduced the participants to the Guest of Honour and discussed the objectives of the conference and the expected results from the conference. The Minister urged the participants, especially the Monitoring and Evaluation Experts, Researchers and Policy makers to share their

experiences and expertise in order to achieve the purpose of the conference. The Minister thanked and congratulated the organizers of the conference for the good preparations they have made. The Minister thanked all the sponsors who contributed to the situation and resources in making the conference a success and finally invited the Guest of Honour to address to the participants and officially open the conference.



Hon. Kassim Majaliwa Majaliwa (MP), the Prime Minister of the United Republic of Tanzania delivered the opening remarks congratulating the organizers of the conference (POPSMGG, TanEA and the Organizing Committee) for the good preparations made.

The Prime Minister emphasized the importance of M&E in ensuring that Government programs are planned and managed to deliver the expected results.

He stressed that the conference was timely and was in line with the vision of Her Excellency Samia Suluhu Hassan, the President of the United Republic of Tanzania on the importance of M&E in overseeing the implementation of various development programs and projects. The Guest of Honour expressed satisfaction with the themes prepared for deliberations and expressed hope that they will show direction on how to implement M&E activities in the Government. In addition, Hon. Prime Minister stressed that Government Institutions should prepare and submit to his Office reports on the implementation of Government projects.

2.2. THEMES OF PAPERS PRESENTED

The conference focused on three thematic areas of discussion which were: -

Theme I: Evaluation of FYDP-II-III and Accountability for Results, the role of policy makers: Opportunities and Challenges



The session was chaired by Dr. Josephine Kimaro. The session observed a memorial statement of Late Prof. Honest Prosper Ngowi, followed by other 4 presentations noted as;

• Understanding constraints and enablers of turnaround time for ethics review: The case of institutional review boards in Tanzania by Mwafidhi Mrisho

- Performance of government entities in the execution of monitoring and evaluation functions by Mrs. Asnath Mugassa from NAOT
- e-GA-ERMS and PMO-M&E Dashboards as a tool for accountability by Mrs. Devotha Gabriel from PMO
- Monitoring government promises on achievements of SDG5 and FY 2020 by Kikumbih Nassoro.

Theme I: Strengthening National Integrated M&E System in Government and Enabling Environment for Strengthening National M&E



The session was chaired by Mr. Cosmas Ngangaji from POPSM&GG in breakout room 1. Four presentations were made.

- Impact Evaluation Lab by Constantine Manda
- Enabling environment for strengthening M&E framework by Pantaleon Shoki. In his presentation, he noted that involving community in evaluation can give right and adequate information hence strengthen M&E.
- Integrated Project M&E system, by Ministry of Finance and Planning. The presentation focused on how the Integrated Project M&E system works in M&E of government projects and ensure efficient utilization of allocated government funds.
- Building National Evaluation Policies by Dr. Francis Mwaijande (Mzumbe University / TanEA). His presentation focused on the policy gap, demand and use for evaluation in Tanzania.

Theme II: Ten years to SDGs: Evaluation Capacity and Agenda towards 2030 and Post-Covid 19 Evaluation and Impact to Socio-Economy

Theme II presentations in breakout room 2 chaired by Mr. Haji Janabi DPP (MoCAS). Six presentations were made. The Ministry of Health presented the M&E system applied in health care systems (hospitals) by Mr. Paolo Belardi. He shared the system and indicators they use to conduct M&E in hospitals at all levels from village to national level.

Miss. Gladness Kampa, a Young and Emerging Evaluator, presented on the role of formative evaluation in changing menstrual and puberty-related challenges of adolescent girls in Tanzania. Her research aims at providing education to young girls in managing their menstrual cycle, along with school classes and young boys' perception to their health situation during their menstrual cycle.

2.3. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING

The conference involved the provision of training tailored to specific areas (Themes). A total of eight (8) trainings were conducted which aimed to raise awareness of M&E issues as follows: -

- (i) Use of M&E for Professionals, Researchers and Policy makers;
- (ii) Method of Evaluation using Outcome Mapping Design.
- (iii) Tanzania Forest Agency M&E System;
- (iv) Key M&E Government Issues;
- (v) M&E Guide for Development Projects;
- (vi) Integrated M&E System of Local Government Authorities;
- (vii) Evaluating on the basis of most significant changes.
- (viii) How to Evaluate Using Outcome Mapping Design

The following is a summary of each training:

Training session 1: Use of M&E for Professionals, Researchers and Policy makers



Dr. Zabron Kaigera, Lecturer of M&E and Expert of Development issues at University of Dar es Salaam delivered his presentations on Monitoring and Evaluation Practice for Development Professionals, Researchers and Policy Makers. He presented about the practice, importance of M&E and qualities of M&E officers/ managers/experts/ and professionals for improved performance, accountability and learning

He also presented the science part of the evaluation (basics, fundamentals and theory) including Logical framework of M&E, Indicators, DAC Criteria and project management.

Training session 2: Method of Evaluation using Outcome Mapping Design

Jerome Sansonetti of the World Bank, Development Impact Evaluation offered outcome mapping tools for evaluation, the training was presented virtually from Washington-US. He explained about how outcome mapping worked in their projects starting with how they treat and receive proposals of endorsement. He also introduced the M&E system and how it works in evaluating the impacts of the indorsement projects in the project area in Tanzania.

Training session 3: Tanzania Forest Agency M&E System



Representative from the Tanzania Forest Reserve (TFS) Mr. Harold provided the experience of an Integrated Digital Monitoring and Evaluation System. The system is integrated into mobile phones to monitor and evaluate all TFS activities from producing to harvesting Forest and Honey products. He also briefly described two other systems: Forest Resources Management System whose function is to monitor forest products and Honey Traceability System which monitors honey production.

Training session 4. Monitoring and Evaluation in Private Sector TPSF

Mr. Zachy Ireney Mbenna of TPSF presented on private sector's contribution in enhancing and improving M&EL in Tanzania. The contribution included but not limited to;

• Establishing strategic cooperation between government and private sector in improving and enhancing M&E. He said that, the strategic cooperation between them will establish responding system for both government and private organization's projects as well as bringing M&E stakeholder and work together



- Valuing and appreciating available M&E experts to influence growth of M&E
- Establish a participatory and sustainable M&E system which will provide results to both government and private sector
- Working on findings of M&E at large extent. He referred the CAG report of 2021 in which 20% of recommendations failed to be administered.
- Working on 61 policies available in Tanzania which can incorporate and put the M&E and Learning in a right position of function in both public and private sector.

Training session 6: Integrated M&E System of Local Government Authorities

Mr. Salum Mushi from PO-RALG presented on the LGA Integrated Monitoring and Evaluation System applied by his ministry for M&E activities. He said that, the integrated system is the combination of various systems from different sectoral departments like agriculture, fishing and water departments of the ministry which collectively coordinate, control and evaluate the activities of all the sectoral departments of the ministry.

Training session 7: Evaluating on the basis of Most Significant Change



Ms. Sakina Mwinyimkuu of POPSMGG and member of TanEA presented on the Oualitative Methodologies Evaluation (Most Significant Change (MSC) applied by her ministry/office in conducting different government of M&E activities. During her presentation, she said that the system is not only based on data, it is beyond the data or showing the factors behind the data.

It is mainly focusing on social constructivism which constructing the meaning. For instance, if the evaluation says that 2% of the students has dropped out from school, the system will show why that 2% of the students has dropped out and what will happen after their drop out.

Ms. Sakina also explained that, the MSC focuses on stories, meaning that the system collects stories and become familiar with the culture and approach to enter the respondents during data collection. This system is mainly story telling approach in which people or respondents are being selected based on the case/ topics and provide their stories which are treated as data in this system.

She further explained that, the stories are being collected through open questionnaires in order to provide respondents with freedom and opportunity to express and give out their stories fully the collector/interviewer. Also, the group discussion, writing interview and audio recording can be used to collect the stories which are data for the MSC system.

She ended her presentation by emphasizing that, after collecting the stories from different respondents/story tellers, will then rank them by looking the story with most frequencies. The story with most frequencies will be taken and considered as data for the MSC system.

Training session 8: How to Evaluate Using Outcome Mapping Design

The last paper was presented digitally by Jerome from DIME - The World Bank, Washington DC, USA. The presenter explained how they work on projects from the way they receive and approve texts (Proposals) he cited the texts they received and worked on from Juma Kaseja and Flaviana Matata from Tanzania. He described the Monitoring and Evaluation system and how it is used in project evaluation.



The discussion included a topic on the reality of monitoring and evaluation in the Government based on the successes, shortcomings and future expectations regarding the implementation of monitoring and evaluation plans. This session was debated by seven (7) contributors who were; Zachy Mbenna (TPSF), Mr. Djax Sanga Biria (TanEA), Prof. Deus Ngaruko, Board Chairperson of TanEA who is also the Vice Chancellor of the Open University of Tanzania - Academic, Ms. Sakina Mwinyimkuu (POPSMGG) and Mr. Khalifa Mponda (MoFAIC). The discussion was chaired by Dr. Isaack Michael (TanEA). Participants had the opportunity to listen to the discussion and provide feedback on the topic.

Discuss session: Professionalization of M&E

Dr. Zabron Kengera from University of Dar es Salaam presented a paper in the making about global overview of the M&E; the importance, professionalization, advantages and costs of professionalization of M&E as well as reasons why we lack M&E professionals specifically in Tanzania.

Discuss session: M&E Guide for Development Projects



In supporting and ensuring M&EL is working well in Tanzania, Mr. Ekingo Magembe, a representative from MoFP said that, as the ministry they have already came up with their own framework for monitoring of their projects which are implemented under the ministry. He also said that, they are currently working and

coming up with their own system for evaluation and collection of data from their implemented projects, He further noticed on the reporting system for big projects implemented under the ministry which is now in the process of establishment by the ministry itself.

3.2. Future of M&EL in Tanzania by Hon. Joseph Kakunda (MP & Chairman-APNODE)



Hon. Ioseph Kakunda (MP & Chairman-APNODE) started his presentation by referring the speech of President Samia Hassan Suluhu during the event of receiving CAG report held on 30th March 2022. The President said that, absence of M&E and presence of too many systems of collecting data in government institutions affect monitoring of government projects and activities. He also said that, in

order to improve M&E, we need to look for and refer to ROX report of 199, Helen annual reports, World Development Report of 2004 and Fund M&E by Tanzanian government.

Hon. Joseph Kakunda listed interventions areas to be considered in enhancing and improving M&E work in Tanzania including but not limited to improving reporting and evaluation systems of government activities, financing of M&E activities in public institutions/projects and increase M&E sections in government institutions, ministries and departments.

3.0 DISCUSSION, OPINIONS AND CHALLENGES

This section identifies various issues raised by participants during the discussion of presentations on various topics and challenges in the management and implementation of Monitoring and Evaluation activities in Government Institutions.

3.1. PARTICIPANTS' DISCUSSION QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Participants were engaged on discussion, Questions and Answers



during the discussion of presentations on various topics as outlined below:



CHAPTER

THREE

(i) Lack of common goal among Monitoring and Evaluation stakeholders;

 (ii) Monitoring of the implementation of various Government activities and projects is carried out, however evaluation is not accorded the weight it deserves. In most cases Government Institutions do not evaluate implemented projects. Most of the evaluations done are for the donorfunded projects;

- (iii) More often Government Institutions report on Projects that are performing well. Areas where implementation was not good were not reported;
- (iv) The performance information provided is not used effectively in decision making. CAG reports, for example, are not processed to satisfactory standards;
- (v) In some government institutions there is no Monitoring and Evaluation Department. Monitoring and Evaluation responsibilities are implemented under the Policy and Planning Departments which are headed by Economists who are basically not well versed in the area of Monitoring and Evaluation;
- (vi) There is no cadre of Monitoring and Evaluation Officer in the Personnel Structure/Scheme of Service;
- (vii) Diversity in Capacity Building and Monitoring Capacity among M&E Stakeholders. Example Universities offer a Master's Degree in Monitoring and Evaluation while M&E is not offered at lower levels such as Certificate, Diploma and Degree.
- (viii) Many institutions set aside a small amount of money for monitoring and evaluation activities.
- (ix) The presence of Component / Monitoring and Evaluation Units does not remove the importance of "Auditing" and the presence of auditing also does not eliminate the importance of reviews and evaluations;
- (x) Annual reviews and evaluations of project implementation results are not conducted by some Local Government Authorities;
- (xi) Currently, many projects, programs, policies, strategies have M&E sections, however, majority of M&E systems are neither effective nor efficient;
- (xii) Inadequate budget resources to perform M&E activities;
- (xiii) Poor M&E data management systems including data collection, analysis, storage and retrival system;
- (ix) M&E complexity including too much work around multiple reporting, extensive missions, large geographical coverage, and difficulties in determining contribution and attribution of interventions





3.2. CHALLENGES

3.2.1 Lack of Integrated Government Monitoring and Evaluation System

Government institutions have grown to develop various systems for collecting and processing information. These systems are not integrated to access multiple information within a single system. The existence of many uncoordinated systems contributes to the diversity of data provided thus making decision makers unable to make informed decisions to the public.

3.2.2 Lack of culture for conducting Monitoring and Evaluation

Monitoring and Evaluation activities in Government Institutions appear to be relatively new compared to other countries that have

made significant strides in this area. Many Government Institutions focus on doing more monitoring and giving little attention to evaluation. Participants acknowledged that the evaluation is very rare and even those that are done are aimed at finding the number and not the expected outcome and are not presented to stakeholders especially with negative outcomes. In addition, participants noted that the lack of monitoring and evaluation plans for some government institutions lead to monitoring and evaluation being carried out as an emergency (ad-hoc). Most of the evaluations that are done are those of projects funded by development partners.

3.2.3. Budget Deficits Allocated for Monitoring and Evaluation

Monitoring and Evaluation activities in the Division / Units at some Institutions have been allocating little or no funding to supervise and implement the Monitoring and Evaluation activities. Participants noted that funds allocated for Monitoring and Evaluation activities are sometimes re-allocated for use to other different activities that occur within the department.

3.2.4 Limited knowledge and skills of Monitoring and Evaluation Specialists

The Monitoring and Evaluation Industry is still in its infancy in Government Institutions. Government institutions still face a shortage of staff with the skills, experience and special skills especially in the area of evaluation. Institutions are largely involved in the monitoring area and paying less attention to evaluation. The evaluation area is not done properly due to the insufficient number of qualified M&E experts. In addition, due to limited understanding, supervisions / follow up activities are considered to be equivalent to monitoring. The limited capacity of the experts of some Institutions in preparing indicators as a result some Government Institutions have grown with Indicators (KPIs) that do not align with the goals and objectives in their Plans.

3.2.5 Monitoring / Evaluation Units / Units under the Policy and Planning Departments

The Monitoring and Evaluation units in Government Institutions fall under the Department of Policy and Planning. The presence of these Sections under the Policy and Planning Department undermines performance. Assistant Directors and Monitoring and Evaluation Officers find themselves implementing more Policy and Planning functions rather than M&E responsibilities. In addition, Checks and Balances in the Policy and Planning department are undermined due to the conflict of interest which arise due to that fact that the same persons who prepare plans and policies cannot evaluate themselves hence needs an impartial external eye.

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS, INSTRUCTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

This section outlines the suggestions made by participants on how to improve the management and implementation of Monitoring and Evaluation activities, directives given by the Guest of Honour, Resolutions/ recommendations and Conclusions.



4.1. PARTICIPATION RECOMMENDATIONS

After participating in the Topics and Discussion presentations, Participants came up with a variety of suggestions for the best number to improve Monitoring and Evaluation activities which are divided into the following categories:

(i) The Government should designate a single Monitoring and Evaluation system that will be used by all Government Institutions; This

CHAPTER FOUR

system which will grow integrated and enable important sector information to be accessed in a single system. With a single system the challenge of having the data inconsistency provided will be reduced; also reporting to different stakeholders will be made easy;

- (ii) To build the capacity of Monitoring and Evaluation Specialists in Government Institutions bv providing them with monitoring and evaluation training and to strengthen partnerships between Government, Private Sector. Development Stakeholders and Civil Society (CSO) in Monitoring and Evaluation matters The identify should Government areas that are experiencing challenges in the Monitoring and Evaluation area so that Non-Governmental Institutions can assist This collaboration will help in increasing the skills and competencies of Monitoring There and Evaluation experts. is also a need to understand the qualifications and skills required of evaluators (evaluators) so that colleges that offer the Monitoring and Evaluation profession can prepare experts in those areas;
- (iii) Creating a culture of monitoring and evaluation in Government Institutions by developing Monitoring and Evaluation Policies and Strategies and

ensuring key stakeholders especially citizens are involved in claiming the results of Development Projects Evaluation to increase accountability;

- (iv) Monitoring and Evaluation Units and sections in Government Institutions should be provided with adequate physical, human and financial resources to carry out monitoring and evaluation activities in an efficient manner;
- (v) The monitoring and evaluation units and sections should be fully-fledged independent rather than being under the Department of Policy and Planning so that they will have sufficient time, financial and human resources to carry out monitoring and evaluation activities. Participants acknowledged that the act of monitoring and evaluation activities being under the influence of economists who do not have sufficient knowledge of Monitoring and Evaluation issues affects the effectiveness of Monitoring and Evaluation activities.

4.2. GOVERNMENT INSTRUCTIONS AND DIRECTIVES

The Guest of Honour, Hon. Kasim Majaliwa Majaliwa, Prime Minister of the United Republic of Tanzania, in his opening remarks, among other things, gave the following directives for follow up and implementation and reporting in the next MEL Week:

- (i) Government institutions responsible for monitoring and evaluation should find the best way to strengthen monitoring and evaluation issues in the country;
- (ii) PermanentSecretariesandRegional Administrative Secretaries (RAS) should be fully involved in M&E Week conferences as they are the custodians of Government funds;
- (iii) All Ministries and Public Institutions should strengthen the existing M&E Sections /Units to achieve efficiency and appropriate feedback on the implementation of various responsibilities and projects;
- (iv) The Ministry has all Public Institutions to prepare oneyear M&E Plans as part of the implementation of the Monitoring and Evaluation Plan;
- (v) Special arrangements should be made to procure and deploy monitoring and evaluation experts in the Government;
- (vi) All Public Institutions should be empowered to monitor and evaluate, prepare standard reports, conduct in-depth analysis and apply the results of such information in decisions and improve Government programs;

- (vii) The issues raised in the forum should be acted upon and evaluation of the implementation of the arguments and recommendations should be made and presented at the next conference in 2023;
- (viii) The upcoming conference will bring together more local and foreign stakeholders to expand the scope of the exchange of experiences;
- (ix) The Association of Monitoring and Evaluation Experts (TanEA) should assist in advising the Government by coming up with suggestions on how best to improve the Monitoring & Evaluation in the country;
- (x) Government Institutions prepare a Monitoring Plan and submit it to the Office of the Prime Minister annually;
- (xi) The Monitoring & Evaluation Week Conference should be held between April - June each year to obtain performance appraisal of Government performance before the financial year begins; and
- (xii) The Office of the Prime Minister should be notified of the Monitoring & Evaluation Week Conference Report. (Appendix No. 4)

CONFERENCE RESOLUTIONS/TAKE AWAYS



The Monitoring and Evaluation Week conference resolved the following: -

- (i) Government to maintain co-operation with various stakeholders across the ecosystem;
- (ii) MDAs and other institutions should allocate adequate physical, human and financial resources to ensure that monitoring and evaluation activities are carried out effectively;
- (iii) In order to attract many stakeholders in the MEL Week we need to advertise ourselves so that the forum can be known widely;
- (iv) The use of information derived from various evaluations should be given priority in policy and decision making;
- (v) There should be a Monitoring and Evaluation Policy for better institutionalization of M&E functions;
- (vi) Promoting monitoring and evaluation in academic institutions while emphasizing the needs of the market by offering courses from certificate level upwards
- (vii) The government and other stakeholders should ensure there is strict implementation of findings and recommendations of the evaluations and
- (viii) Monitoring and Evaluation should go hand in hand with the use of ICT.



5.0 Vote of Thanks and Announcements of 2023 MEL Week

The acting Permanent Secretary (POPSM) Mr. Hassan O. Kitenge, ended by providing word of thanks to delegates, sponsors and organizers, along with the summary of the discussions, topics and presentations for two days of the conference. He also provided the observations and recommendations, together with a statement on the feedback of the conference which will be prepared by his office before its submission to PMO.

5.1 Closing Speech and Way Forward



Hon. Degratius John Ndejembi (MP), Deputy Minister, POPSM&GG, gave the official closing remarks. He started by extending his gratitude to his office and TanEA in organizing and achieving the conference, together with participants for coming and appreciated the topics and the presentations. He also congratulated all the public M&E actors received the awards as part appreciating their efforts in making the M&E work.

He promised that, all the observations, recommendations and resolutions including making M&E as professional and establishing M&E body will be worked on by considering the importance of M&E in implementation of projects and utilization of government funds.

NEA -----

He finally promised the conference to be a continued platform. He ended his remarks by suggesting for early preparation of the conference feedback and theme for 2023 and planning for 2023 conference should consider the parliamentary budget sessions so as permanent secretaries from different sectoral ministries able to attend the conference.

5.2 Learning

The 2022 M&EL week provided an opportunity for learning, adaptation and adjustments. The following are the extracts of learnings

- 1. M&EL week is an opportunity to understand matters pertaining to M&E within the government machinery.
- 2. M&E professionals and practitioners must have a forum to discuss professional issues on M&E in the country
- 3. Good partnership between the government, private sector and CSOs increase participation of citizens in contributing their ideas on managing development for results
- 4. Tanzania citizens have role for monitoring of their socio-economic development programmes for enhancing accountability in MDAs
- 5. Monitoring and Evaluation enhance achievement of National Development Programmes and SDGs
- 6. M&E is acknowledged as an important tool for attaining Sustainable Development Goals
- 7. There is policy gap that Government should look into the possibility of developing M&E policy so that M&E issues would be taken seriously
- 8. M&E units at Ministry, Department, Agencies, local government and government institutions should be strengthened by recruiting M&E experts and providing them with necessary training, working facilities and having budgetary allocating.
- 9. Professionalization of M&E considering that M&E cuts across disciplines (engineers, accountants, health, education, project management, academicians, economists, environmentalists)
- 10. The Government Prime Minister has a passion on Monitoring and Evaluation encouraging as it shows the commitment and seriousness accorded by the government to matters pertaining to M&E

6.0 CONCLUSION

Monitoring and Evaluation The 2022 Week conference aimed at bringing together various Government stakeholders including policy makers, policy implementers and Development stakeholders to learn and share experiences on various monitoring and evaluation issues. In addition, the Conference provided an opportunity for participants to contribute ideas on opportunities, achievements and challenges related to monitoring and evaluation and what can be done to bring about sustainable development in the country. In addition, various recommendations made are a catalyst to improve monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of various Government projects and programs to bring about the expected results and strengthen accountability in performance. TanEA and POPSMGG were assigned responsibilities to undertake to keep momentum for the next M&EL (Table 1).



Table 1: Government Directives for implementation

S/No	INSTRUCTIONS	RESPONSIBLE
1	Government institutions responsible for monitoring and evaluation should find the best way to strengthen monitoring and evaluation issues in the country.	POPSMGG
2	Permanent Secretaries and Regional Administrative Secretaries (RAS) should be fully involved in M&E Week conferences as they are the custodians of Government funds	POPSMGG
3	All Ministries and Public Institutions should strengthen the existing M&E Components / Units to achieve efficiency and appropriate feedback on the implementation of various responsibilities and projects	POPSMGG
4	The Ministry has all Public Institutions to prepare one-year M&E Plans as part of the implementation of the Monitoring and Evaluation Plan.	POPSMGG
5	Special arrangements should be made for the recruitment and evaluation of existing Government monitoring and evaluation experts	POPSMGG
6	All Public Institutions should be empowered to conduct monitoring and evaluation, prepare standard reports, conduct in-depth analysis and apply the results of such information in decision-making and improve Government programs.	РМО
7	The Association of Monitoring and Evaluation Experts (TanEA) should help advise the Government by coming up with suggestions on how best to improve the Monitoring & Evaluation area.	TanEA
8	Office of the Prime Minister to be notified of the 2022 Monitoring and Evaluation Week Report.	POPSMGG
7.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Conference evaluation

1. Overall quality of the conference preparations and communications

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	51	41	12	6	2
respondents					
%	45.5	36.6	10.7	5.4	1.8

2. Quality of location of the conference hall, scenery and meals

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	57	39	19	5	3
respondents					
%	46	32	15	4	2

3. Efficiency in communication and coordination of presentations

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	37	47	17	4	4
respondents					
%	33.9	43.1	15.6	3.7	3.7

4. Adequacy of the conference duration

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	18	39	40	11	4
respondents					
%	16.1	34.8	35.7	9.8	3.6

5. Importance of the main theme and presentations

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	44	42	17	5	4
respondents					
%	39.3	37.5	15.2	4.5	3.6

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	47	39	16	3	7
respondents					
%	42.0	34.8	14.3	2.7	6.3

7. Relevance of the presented papers

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	37	47	17	1	8
respondents					
%	33.6	42.7	15.5	0.9	7.3

8. Proficiency of presenters

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	36	56	10	4	5
respondents					
%	32.4	50.5	9.0	3.6	4.5

Overall, the majority of participants 50.6% felt that the competency of presenters was good and 32.4% felt that the ability of presenters was very good. In addition, 9% of the respondents stated that the capacity of presenters was average whereas 3.6% said presenters' capability was weak. The remaining 4.5% reported that the presenter's competency was very weak.

9. Organization of breakaway groups

	Very good	Good	Average	Poor	Very poor
No. of	38	40	22	8	5
respondents					
%	33.6	35.4	19.5	7.1	4.4

33.6 per cent of participants said the organization of breakaway groups was very good while 35.5 per cent stated that it was good. On the other hand, 19.5 per cent felt the order of discussion in groups was moderate and 7.1 per cent reported that it was bad because there was noise inside the hall which was divided using a curtain. In addition, 4.4 per cent said that the arrangement of discussion rooms was very poor.

10. What was most interesting for you in this conference?

- a) Presentation of the Ministry of Finance and Planning was interesting because it enabled participants to gain better understanding of government activities and what lies ahead on issues related to M&E
- b) Group discussions allowed participants to get detailed explanations of M&E issues and sharing more information in an elaborative manner
- c) There was a good balance of time allocated for presentations and for group discussions this was made possible due to the group chairs managing well and adhering to the time schedules
- d) There was a sizeable number of participants of different types and disciplines
- e) To see Tanzania, prepare for the first time a conference on M&E as these issues for the spirit of successful development programs and projects management
- f) Inviting stakeholders from all walks of life was a good thing as it enabled participants to learn a lot from others within and outside the country
- g) We got an opportunity to understand matters pertaining to M&E within the government machinery
- h) Liked the way issues concerning M&E in the country were outspoken
- i) M&E professionals and practitioners having a forum to discuss professional issues on M&E in the country
- j) Good partnership between the government (POPSMGG) and the private sector including associations like TanEA, TPSF etc.
- k) Active participation of participants in contributing their ideas
- l) Putting in place a session for questions and answers concerning M&E

- m) Heated debate and participant's contributions after each presentation was evidence that the presented topics were relevant to M&E issues
- n) Set-up of the conference hall was satisfactory and well decorated
- o) Good flow of the program, presentations and discussions and the themes and the conference at large
- p) This is a good start towards having an M&E policy because it is becoming evident there is a need of having such a policy
- q) Presenters and panelists were well chosen because they understood their subject matter very well

Suggested themes of 2023 conference

- 1. Evidence-based evaluation: Key for Development
- 2. Thinking and working together for the common good of the country
- 3. Changing global environment and future of M&E experts
- 4. Tanzania citizens role: Accountability measures in MDAs, LGAs, CSOs, UN agencies in relation to M&E
- 5. Monitoring and Evaluation for enhancement and achievement of National Development Goals
- 6. M&E for sustainable development
- 7. Status of implementation of M&E standards in Tanzania
- 8. Implementation status of SDGs towards 2030
- 9. How M&E contributes to national development.

GOVERNMENT	TanEA /POPSMGG	OPSMGG
officers are involved in the preparation of		professions from different sectors
the national budget	(xviii)	Venue should have more breakout rooms to create conducive environment for group discussions
	(xix)	In the next conference organizers are advised to invite presenters with concrete case studies related to Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning, this will give more encouragement to professionals in this field
	(xx)	Issues related to M&E being multidisciplinary should take into consideration professionals of different disciplines (engineers, accountants, teachers, academicians, economists, environmentalists, M&E experts etc.)
	(xxi)	Invite representatives from AfrEA and other African countries so that we could share experiences and learn from what they are doing
	(xxii)	Conference organizers should consider providing allowances to participants
	(xxiii)	Consider Number of invitees from the civil society, national networks such as the National Council of NGOs (NaCoNGO), TANGO, Policy Forum, Foundation for Civil Society, MVIWATA etc.
	(xxiv)	Provide adequate Program handbooks to the number of participants
	(xxv)	Participants from various ministries should be increased in order to have a balanced representation and thus it will help

GOVERNMENT	MENT	TanEA /POPSMGG	DPSMGG
(vii)	National Bureau of Statistics was supposed to be given a topic to present related to issues of statistical importance for the	(viii)	Time of two days was not enough; the conference should be held for a period of four days or more in order to get ample time for experience sharing and learning
	National Development Plan	(ix)	Publicize the conference for the Tanzanian public
(viii)	Permanent Secretaries and Regional Administrative Secretaries should organize a joint meeting in the next three months	(×)	Policies and guidelines which are said are in place should be distributed openly so that they could be readily available to the government officials and if possible, they should be posted in the website
(iv)	Eron rounn mont amalarias charled racaito	(xi)	It is important to have a sign language interpreter for the disabled
	training on monitoring and evaluation	(xii)	Presentation should be practical matters as much as possible
	(because it is a cross-cutting issue) instead of relying on planning and policy experts alone	(xiii)	Next conference of 2023 should have a thorough stakeholders mapping to ensure that no one is left behind
		(xiv)	Timing of the conference time was not friendly for some
(x)	M&E units at Ministry, Department, Agencies, local government and government		important government officers to be able to attend because they were engaged in the national budget preparations.
	institutions should be strengthened by recruiting M&E experts and providing them	(vx)	There ought to be a presentation on the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and challenges of the
	with necessary working facilities and		government M&E system
(xi)	allocatility errough runds. Government should strengthen M&F	(xvi)	Presentation by the CAG to get his perspective as far as M&E
(11)	sections	(xvii)	De a concern This conference was supposed to invite the executive
(xii)	Allow government officers to attend the	-	directors of Local Government Councils and experts in
	coincide with the period when government		various fields because M&E involves many fields and

GOVERNMENT	TanEA /POPSMGG	OPSIMGG
officers are involved in the preparation of		professions from different sectors
the national budget	(xviii)	Venue should have more breakout rooms to create conducive environment for group discussions
	(xix)	In the next conference organizers are advised to invite presenters with concrete case studies related to Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning, this will give more encouragement to professionals in this field
	(xx)	Issues related to M&E being multidisciplinary should take into consideration professionals of different disciplines (engineers, accountants, teachers, academicians, economists, environmentalists, M&E experts etc.)
	(xxi)	Invite representatives from AfrEA and other African countries so that we could share experiences and learn from what they are doing
	(xxii)	Conference organizers should consider providing allowances to participants
	(xxiii)	Consider Number of invitees from the civil society, national networks such as the National Council of NGOs (NaCoNGO), TANGO, Policy Forum, Foundation for Civil Society, MVIWATA etc.
	(xxiv)	Provide adequate Program handbooks to the number of participants
	(xxv)	Participants from various ministries should be increased in order to have a balanced representation and thus it will help

GOVERNMENT	TanEA /POPSMGG	
	all ministries to take seriously the issues of M&E	the issues of M&E
	(xxvi) Next year's MEL Conference should be held for the whole week as the name suggests	hould be held for the whole
	(xxvii) Organizers should invite academicians to com the topics on M&E based on their experience	Organizers should invite academicians to come and present the topics on M&E based on their experience
	(xxviii) In order to have good continuity, the participants of the conference in 2022 should all be invited to the conferen 2023	In order to have good continuity, the participants of the conference in 2022 should all be invited to the conference in 2023
	(xxix) Next conference should take place outside Dodoma where we can get a spacious modern conference hall with all necessary facilities.	place outside Dodoma where n conference hall with all
	(xxx) Next conference organizers should look for a large size conference hall with a capacity of accommodating over 4 participants, improve food logistics. The best way was to issue coupons which could reduce the queues.	Next conference organizers should look for a large size conference hall with a capacity of accommodating over 400 participants, improve food logistics. The best way was to issue coupons which could reduce the queues.
	(xxxi) Next conference organizers should invite participants from outside the country	nould invite participants from
	(xxxii) It is important to have interpreters so that everyone could follow easily the discussions	eters so that everyone could
	(xxxiii) Conference organizers should advertise widely the conference inside and outside the country	advertise widely the e the country
	(xxxiv) Group photo was very important as memorabilia for documentation	ant as memorabilia for

GOVERNMENT	Tanta /BOBSMGG
	(xxxv) Organize to host a cocktail party for all participants
	(xxxvi) Organize M&E training for government employees and other participants who attended the conference
	(xxxvii) TanEA in collaboration with the government should conduct the conference two times in a year
	(xxxviii) POPSMGG consider to prepare a scheme of service for M&E experts so that they can go for further education and can be promoted thereafter
	(xxxix) Resolutions of 2022 M&EL conference should be acted upon and get feedback in the 2023 conference
	(xl) Next 2023 conference should start by assessing the extent to which the previous resolutions have been implemented

ŝ	NAME		CENDED	DESIGNATION	DUONE	
-110			GENDEN			
1.	ALLEN MSHANA	RUWASA	Σ	DATA MANAGER	0714 620057	Allen.mshana@ruwasa.go.tz
2.	HASSANI L. MWANDOBA	NEC	Σ	ADME	0719196519	Hloukim2010@gmail.com
'n	ENG.BONIFACE KOMBA	MINISTRY OF WATER	Σ	ENGINEER	0744705327	Boniface.seven@maji.go.tz
4.	YOHANA C. MTALISI	BAHI DC	Σ	ЬГО	0655677444	yohanahili@gmail.com
ъ.	Prof. DEUS NGARUKO	TANEA	Σ	BOARD CHAIR	0764378575	ngamkodp@gmail.com
Ö	BENEDICT NDOMBA	eGA	Σ	DL	0788470041	Benect.ndomba@ega.go.tz
7.	SEPHON MHALILA	WIZARA YA UJENZI NA UCHUKUZI (UCHUKUZI)	Σ	ECONOMIST	0714812982	Sephon.mhalila@uchukuzi.go.tz
ø	APOLINARY TAMAYAMALI	וגטרט	Σ	C/GGR	0754394084	Apolinary.tamayamali@.go.tz
б	HAROLD CHIPANHA	TFS	Σ	HEAD OF ICT	0655222177	Harold.chipananha@tfs.go.tz
10.	I SAID CHITUNG	LSF/TANEA	Σ	M&E	0758110015	Said.chitunga@lstz.go.tz
11.	PAULINA MKOMA	MOEST	ш	PEO 1	0713226611	Paulina.mkama@go.tz
12.	: ALEX KIKARUGAA	MINISTRY OF WATER	Σ	ECONOMIST	0715059704	Alex.kikarugaa@maji.go.tz
13.	IRENE A. TARIMO	THE OPEN UNIVERSITY OF TANZANIA	F	EDUCATOR, ENVIRONMENTALISTS	071330876	Irene.tarimo@out.go.tz
14.	. BROWN PANTALEO	IRINGA - RS	Μ	STATISTICAN	0763969378	bpantaleo@gmail.com
15.	MOHAMED NASSOR	RITA	Σ	ECONOMIST		Mohamed.nassor@rita.go.tz
16.	i DJAX BIRIA	TANEA	Σ	EXECUTIVE SECRETARY	0658037992	biriadjax2007@gmail.com
17.	· NTONDA M	RS DODOMA	ME	RC'S OFFICE	0713917107	Methste68@gmail.com
18.	HEZRON L. NYAMWAYIRA	JSC	ME	ЫО	0768992222	Hezron.nyamwayira@jsc.go.tz
19.	SAID MWAMBURA	PO – PSM	Σ	AC	0714482886	Said.mwambura68@gmail.com
20.	I FATMA OMAR	MOM	ц	ENGINEER	0714131231	Fatuma.omari@maji.go.tz
21.	ALBERT DEDE	NNRT	Σ	P/ECONOMIST	0717933650	Albert.sylvester@maliasil.go.tz
		·				

Appendix 3: List of Participants

Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
22.	DR. HANIETH MTAA	OUT	u.	LEETUREW	0713426964	Mtuchanieth14@yahoo.com
23.	DASILVA D. MLAU	MINISTRY OF LIVESTOCK AND FISHERIES (L)	Σ	P/STATISTICIAN	0784031014	Dasukva. mlau@mifugo.go.tz
24.	. MATHERW M. KIRAMA	PO – PSC	Σ	SECRETARY	0788444888	Mathew.kirama@psc.go.tz
25.	MARIAM SILIM	MLHHSD	ш	ADME	0683214181	Mariam.silima@lands.go.tz
26.	A. MUTALEMWA	AG. RPC	щ	RPC	0762625618	amutalemwa@yaho.com
27.	INUS MWAITELEBE	IRDP	Σ	LEEDEND	0718119663	mesjames@yahoo.com
28.	-	IRDP	Σ	STUDENT	0766006422	Justinasende92@gmail
29.	ZUENA MAULID	IRDP	щ	STUDENT	0757146731	zuenamaulid@gmail.com
30.	GODFREY MAHEMBA	FIU	ω	PRINCIPAL OFFICER	0713770646	gsmahemba.go.tz
31.	SALOME MATHIAS	PLUS, MORE INVESTMENT	ш	PROGRAM OFFICER	0782433368	Salomemathias@gmail.com
32.	GLADNESS KAMPL	TANEA	щ	COMMINICATION OFFICER	0755924707	karungikazuri@gmail.com
33.	MSAFIRI SHAYO	NBC	Σ	CHIEF OF STAFF & STRAYBOY	0754210489	Msafiri.shayo@nbc.co.tz
34.	GEOGRE STAMBULI	GPSA	Σ	PO	0715402065	Stambuli.george@gmail.com
35.	SELF J. MPINANGA	ZIMAMOTO	Σ	RFO	0713424306	jmfinanga@gmail.com
36.	SOSTHENES W. KIBWENGO	TAKUKURU	Σ	RBC	0787520356	nscdodoma@pccb.go.tz
37.	. ACI MWAIFUGE	UHAMIAJI	ш	RIO	0714250005	Bahati.immigration.go.tz
38.	GODFREY G. KAGORO	MUHSA (ARDHI)	Σ	S. STATIRCIAN	0783555439	Godfrey.gkagorolands.go.tz
39.	RAMADHANI KIPAMBE	MOFP	Σ	ECONOMIST	0684197541	Ramadhani.kipambe@hazina.go.tz
40.	RUKIA BAKARI	CCO	ш	ECONOMIST	0717129221	Rukia.omange79@omast.com
41.	. AGRIPINA GPDFREY	ENG	ш	MOM	0688546214	Agripina.georey2@maji.go.tz
42.	SENZO F. GWANCHECE	TEMESA	Σ	PMRM	0759054020	Senzo.fredrick@temesa.go.tz
43.	K.S. KIDIMWA	TMA	Σ	MPM	0753372133	Kidimwa.kidimwa@mekeo.go.tz
44.	A.M. AUDAX	NDOM	Σ	MPM	0747706385	audanthony@gmail.com

Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
45.	B.A. KESSY	NDOM	Σ	MPM	0672957048	kessbaraka@gmail.com
46.	FLORIAN VEDASTO	IRDP	Σ	MPME	0753163172	florianvedato@gmail.com
47.	SAFARAN MSUYA	BAPNZLA NM	ц	CDO	0757145343	Safaran.msuya@gmail.com
48.	EMMANUEL M. MSANGI	IRDP	Σ	MPAME	0678410317	Emmanuel.msangi@orpp.go.tz
49.	TUMAINED MUCHA	WIZARA YA AFYA	Δ	ADMDE	0714515993	Tumainel.much@afya.go.tz
50.	AMBILALEGE A. MWAKUYELU	WIZARA YA MIFUGO NA UVUVI – UVUVI	Σ	AG. ADME	0765915902	Ambilile.mwakyely@uvuvi.go.tz
51.	MOHAMED MOHAMED	OR - TAMISEMI	Σ	STATIACIAN	0764883173	Mohamed.mohamed@tamisemi.go.tz
52.	NOAH MKASANGA	MIT	Σ	STATITICAN	0788690428	Noah.lasanga@mit.go.tz
53.	ELIA MALAKI	TSC	Σ	P/ECON	0713428206	Elia.mdaki@tsc.go.tz
54.	CHARLES SALYEEM	RITA	Σ	DIRECTOR	0754393837	Charles.salyeem@rita.go.tz
55.	LEONCE TABAN	MINISTRY OF WATER	Σ	ENGINEER	0717286740	Leonce.taban@maji.go.tz
56.	DAVID J. PWEGE	PO – PSC	MME	AG. DIRECTOR PLANNING	0717600804	Daudi.johas@psc.go.tz
57.	MUHARAMI H. MKWAC	NEC	Σ	ECONOMIST	0712335500	Muharami.mbaga@nec.go.tz
58.	POLE J. MAGESA	NATIONAL COLLEGE OF TOURISM	ш	PRINCIPAL ECONOMIST	0625612263	Pole.magesa@nct.ac.tz
59.	RUTA MTAKYAWA	ROMME	Σ	DIRECTOR	0784770775	Ruta.mitakyai@gmail.com
60.	LENGAI LONGNAS	ECONOMIST	Σ	ECONOMIST	0764284547	Lengai.longras@nje.go.tz
61.	ANGELA ANATORY	RITA	ш	CGO	0784609389	Angela.anatory@rita.go.tz
62.	JOANITA MAGONHO	UONGOZI INST	ц	MEO	0763177931	jmagongo@uongozi.or.tz
63.	SALUM HUSSEN	eGA	Σ	DCS	0715448500	Salum.hussen@ega.go.tz
64.	ASNATH MUGASSA	NAO	ц	CEA	0767266793	Asnath.ugassa@nao.go.tz
65.	MARCO MWOGENI	MCDGWSG	Σ	PEC	0754947051	Marco.mwa
66.	PROF. EMMANUEL NYANGWELI	OPEN UNIVERSTY OF TANZANIA	Σ	ACADEMICIAN	0758177202	Emmanuel.nyangweli@gmail.com

			GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
67.	DAMAS MATIKO	TMDA	Σ	MANAGER PLANNNING M&E	0754820463	Damas.matiko@tmda.go.tz
68.	. SSP ISAKWISA G. MWADANJOBE	MAGEREZA	Σ	D/RPO	0756627703	mwasongoleisakwisa@gmail.com
.69.	LEONARD A. LUHWAVI	JFC	ω	SEC	0713705160	<u>Luhwavi@gmail.com</u> .
70.	PROSPER HAULE	TULA	Σ	PLO	0672088585	Prosper.haule@tule.go.tz
71.	. EKINGO MAGEMBE	MOFP	Σ	P/ECON	0756449402	Ekingo.magembe@hazina.go.tz
72.	JAMES L. MESSO	MPWAPWA DC	Σ	PLO II	0766097135	Messo.james@gmail.com
73.	. NELSON RUTARAGARA	WMA	Σ	PELON	0755105308	Nelson.ruturagara@wma.go.tz
74.	DR ZABRAON KENGERA	LECTURER UDSM	Σ	LECTURER	0788361183	2kengera@yahoo.com
75.	. FREDRICK KIMARO	NDOM	Σ	M&E	0762760734	Fredrick.kimaro.94.com
76.	. JOHN KIMARIO	NDOM	Σ	M&E	0655521574	John.kimaro@gmail.com
77.	. ALLY RASHIDI	TCDC	Σ	STATICIAN	0714840385	Ally.rashidi@ushirika.go.tz
78.	. OMARY MAGOMEL	ITU	Σ	STUDENT	0713852576	Omarymagomel@gmail.com
79.	. RHOB DOTTO MATIKU	URAMBO DC	ш	DHS	0755883817	Rhobdotto.matiku@gmail.com
80.	MARIA B. ISANGU	FIU	ш	PHRO	0684111413	Maria.isangu@fiu.go.tz
81.	MOHAMED BAKARI	CHRAGG	Σ	SEO	0713366393	Mohamed.bakari@chrjg.go.tz
82.	. SAID Y. PURUTUNI	e-GA	Σ	ICTO	0739170081	Saidi.furtuni@gmail.com
83.	ONGWAGWA GWAMBAYE	NSMOMSN	Σ	ICT	0699596906	Onganwo.gwambaye@unwomsn.go.tz
84.	EVODIA PANGANI	TSC	ш	P/ECONIMIST	0713420738	evidia@tsc.go.tz
85.	· VEREDIANA P. NGAHEGA	PO – PSMGG	ш	ASSISTANT DIRECTOR	0715714430	Verdiana.ngahega@utumishi.go.tz
86.	SALAMA S. MOHAMED	PO – PSMGG	ш	ASSISTANT DIRECTOR	0717069995	Salama.said@utumishi.go.tz
87.	. SALUM M. MGAYA	NATIONAL PROSECUTIONS SERVICES - NPS	Σ	ECONOMIST	0716224847	Salum.mgaya@nes.go.tz
88.	. IN NEHEMIA LUFINGO	eGA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0767212523	Nehemia.mwakibeta@ega.go.tz

Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
89.	DR. NOEL MATEMBA	OPEN UNIVERSTY OF TANZANIA	Σ	LECTURER	0783333093	matembajr@gmail.com
.06	AVIDACE THEOPHIL	RECOT AFRICA	Σ	FOUNDING	0742959695	avidace@gmail.com
91.	PRAYGOD WILLIAM	RUWASA HQ	Σ	DATA MANAGER	0712909288	Praygod.william@ruwasa.go.tz
92.	EGIDIUS BANYENZA	TMA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0757578892	Egidius.banyenza@meteo.go.tz
93.	EVERADA MATHEW NDUGUMCHAMA	OR - MUUUB	ш	SENIOR COMMUNITYU DEVELOPMENT OFFICER	0754282667	Everda.ndugumchama@utumishi.go.tz
94.	GODFREY THOMAS MJATTA	MOA	Σ	SENIOR STATISTICIAN	0714839220	Godfre.mjatta@kilimo.go.tz
95.	JOSEPHS KIRANYI	MOA	Σ	AD - MES	0787149915	josephskironyi@kilimo.go.tz
.96.	DR. ISAACK MICHAEL	TANEA	Σ	LECTURER	0764584344	Dr.isackmichael@gmail.com
97.	CHARLES PHILEMON	TANEA	Σ	RETIRED EDUCATION OFFICER	0754680591	mabondacp@gmail.com
98.	MOHAMED J. GOMBATI	POPSM&UM	Σ	ADESPS	0784575212	Mohamed.gombati2@utumishi.go.tz
.66	GUBAS VYAGUSA	POPSMS	Σ	ADREM	0756399070	Gubas.vyagusa@utumishi.go.tz
100.	MARTHA A. WILILO	POPSM	Ч	CIA	0713473904	Martha. wililo@ utumishi.go.tz
101.	VICTOR E. NGOLE	POPSM	Σ	DPMU	0754965899	Victor.ngole@utumishi.go.tz
102.	PRISCUS P. KIWANGO	PO – PSMGG	Σ	DICTS	0786421688	Priscus.kiwango@utumishi.go.tz
103.	IBRAHIM B. MAHUMI	POPSM	Σ	DIRECTOR	0784380077	lbrahim.mahumi2@utumishi.go.tz
104.	COSMAS NGANGAJI	PO – PSMGG	Σ	DIRECTOR	0782067444	Cosmas.ngangaji@utumishi.go.tz
105.	MARIAM G. MWANILWA	PO – PSMGG	ц	DIRECTOR	0713306696	Mariam.mwamilwa@utumishi.go.tz
106.	MARY LYSOM MWAKAPENDA	PO – PSMGG	ш	НАСИ	0713190408	Mary.mwakapenda@utumishi.go.tz
107.	STARAH KAVIRA	PO – PSMGG	ш	ADPL	0655328174	Starah.hardany@utumishi.go.tz
108.	VEILA SHOO	PO – PSMGG	ш	ADSS	0754309253	Veila.shoo@utumishi.go.tz
109.	109. LEILA MAVUKA	PO – PSMGG	ц	DEP	0786988351	Leila.mavuka@utumishi.go.tz

,						
Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
110.	. HILDA N. KABISA	PO – PSMGG	ч	DLS	0784255450	Hild.kabissa@utumishi.go.tz
111.	. DR. EDITH RWIZA	PO – PSMGG	ц	AG. DHRD	0754295554	Ediith.rwiza@utumishi.go.tz
112.	. AHADI B. SABUNI	PO – PSMGG	Σ	TO	0755380130	Ahadi.sabuni@utumishi.go.tz
113.	. DR. FATUMA MGANGA	RS DODOMA	F	RAS	0766643266	mshumikivasni@gmail.com
114.	. COL. JUSTAS KITAA	BASE GMS	Σ	BASSGMS	0768157615	Justatskita@gmail.com
115.	. SACF J. MFIWANGA	FIRE	Σ	RFO	0713424306	igmfinaga@gmail.com
116.	. HAMIDA MUSHI JUMA	NATIONAL IRRIGATION COMMISSION	ц	STATISTICIAN	0659688595	Hamida.juma2@nirc.go.tz
117.	. FLORENCE URASSA LEAONARD	RITA	Σ	STATISTICIAN	0718993625	Florence.urassa@rita.go.tz
118.	. MATHIAS COSTER	PO – RALG	Σ	STATISTICIAN	0784022006	<u>Mathias.massawe@tamisemi.go.tz</u>
119.	. HAMISI R. WAZIRI	TANROARDS	Σ	ENGINEER	0754876069	Hamisi.waziri@tanroads.go.tz
120.	. ESTHER E. ABRAHAM	PO – RALG	F	PLANNING OFFICER	0767928780	Estherabratem724@gmail.com
121.	. GEORGE THOBAS	TBA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0785885721	Geoge.thobas.go.tz
122.	. ELIEGEMU SATERU	TANRODS	Σ	MPME	0754884750	Eliehema.satheri@tanroads.go.tz
123.	BROWN GIDEON	BUNGE	Σ	PRO	0757292922	Brown.gideon@bunge.go.tz
124.	. BEATHA EZEKIA	TAA HQ	ц	MPS	0786346262	beathaezekia@gmail.com
125.	. NASIB ELIAS	TAA HQ	Σ	PS	0756009153	nasib.nasibu@airponts.go.tz
126.	126. MWANAAMANI J. MTOO	PO – PSMGG	ц	ADDM	0713379938	<u>Mwanaamani.mtoo@utumishi.go.tz</u>
127.	. ALLY A. NGOWO	PO – PSMGG	Σ	ADEP	0625957334	Ally.mgowo@utumishi.go.tz
128.	. GETRUDE I. CHIUNGA	PO – PSMGG	ч	SHRO	0713494749	Getrude.chiunga@utumishi.go.tz
129.	. MWAMVITA SHAMTE	PO – PSMGG	ч	HRO	0713458950	Mwamvita.shamite@utumishigo.tz
130.	. ROCKY SETEMBO	PO – PSMGG	Σ	SIO	0713437979	Rocky.setembo@utumishi.go.tz
131.	. KOMBO SIWA	TFS – DSM	Σ	SCO	0687977048	Kombo.siwa@yahoo.com

Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
137	MIIGETA KI BI MIIWA		W		0764470053	kuruniwa@email.com
.761	ואוחפבוש אחער		ž	LLU	0/ 044 / NU03	kurunjiwa@ginali.com
133.	OYOMBE SIMBA	TIA	Σ	PLO	0692467746	Oyombe.simba@tia.ac.tz
134.	ZACHY MBENNA	TPSF	Σ	DIRECTOR	075544904	Zacly.mbena@tpsfoor.tz
135.	PATRICK J. SIMKOKO	MIIT	Σ	SENIOR ECON.	0713716171	Patick.simkoko@miit.go.tz
136.	136. WALLACE LUSSINGO	ASNET	Σ	MD	0712920000	Wallace.lussing@gmail.com
137.	JEREMIAH LUBHETA	MORO MC	Σ	MUNICIPAL	0787396476	lubelejej@gmail.com
138.	CHARLES MBINGA	PO PSRS	Σ	ECONOMIST	0653505571	Charles.mbinga@ajjra.go.tz
139.	139. FATMA ALAWI	LRCT	ч	ECONOMIST	0784826366	Fatuma.said@lrtct.go.tz
140.	ERICK MANG'ERA	TBA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0654530588	erickmangera@tba.go.tz
141.	ZAKIA NOYA	TBA	ч	ECONOMIST	0762882678	Zakia.nkya.go.tz
142.	KEDRON ISSAH MBWILO	PBPA	Σ	FM	0754008840	Kedron.mbwilo@pbpa.go.tz
143.	SEVERINE GREGPRY	KILOSA DC MOROGORO	Σ	ECONOMIST	0768258229	greyserverine@gmail.com
144.	DR. MURSALI MILANZI	MZUMBE	Σ	LECTURER	0782356820	manilasi@mzumbe.ac.tz
145.	DAUDI MAJAJI	TARURA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0787800003	<u>dmayaji@yahoo.com</u>
146.	ANETH MATHEW	PMO – LYED	ц	P ECONOMIST	0688938565	Aneth.mathew@kazi.go.tz
147.	SUZANA S. NGOWI	OFFICE OF DIRECTOR GENERAL	ш	STATISTICIAN	0716734271	Suzana.ngowi@asq.go.tz
148.	IBRAHIM LIGUO	OTR	Σ	ECONOMIST	0773497030	lbrahim.liguo.go.tz
149.	KHALID DIHENGA	MOEST	Σ	SICTO	0754340313	khalid.dihenga.most.go.tz
150.	BERNARD BUREMO	UCSAF	Σ	SMEO	0715545445	Bernard.buremo@ucsaf.go.tz
151.	DR. DAVID MWENDAMAKA	IRDP RETIRED	Σ	SENIOR LECTURER	0784385348	David.mwendamako@gmail.com
152.	MUSSA MAKOTA	MCDGWSG	Σ	ADME	0656107308	Musa. makuta@jamii.go.tz
153.	WILLIAM JEJE	NAOT	Σ	AUDITOR	0716287492	Jeje.william@nao.go.tz
154.	154. EPIMACK CESCER	MOW	Σ	ENGINEER	0767176463	Epimack.swedy@maj.go.tz

Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
155.	MSEYA M. MBENE	GPSA	Σ	PLANNING OFFICER	0713737103	Msaya.mboye@gpsa.go.tz
156.	. LAUMA A. LAUMA	MODANS	Σ	ECONOMIST	0689545191	Lauma.lauma@modens.go.tz
157.	JANETH J. GWIMILE	OUT	ч	ASS.LEC	0785395454	janethgwimile@out.ac.tz
158.	ABDUL KILINGA	OUT	Σ	ASS.LEC	0788513483	Abdul.kilinga@out.go.tz
159.	MUSSA HAMZA IDDI	TFS	Σ	MEDO	0715090152	Mussa.iddi.@tfs.go.tz
160.	SEBASTIAN LACHA	JUDICIANARY OF TANZANIA	Σ	ADME	0714101101	Sebasitan.lacha@judiciacy.go.tz
161.	HAPPINESS KIZIGIRA	NBC BANK	ч	BRANCH MANAGER	0767211934	Happeniess.kizgira@nbc.co.tz
162.	ADAM C. MKWAIGOGA	MLF(F)	Σ	AD - DP	0784222591	Adam.mwaigoga@uvuvi.go.tz
163.	IRENE LUCAS	MOA	ч	MEO	0715673289	Irene. lukas@kilimo.go.tz
164.	164., ALINDA N	BRELA	ч	SST	0713909038	Alinda.lema@brela.go.tz
165.	BERNAD LUBYA	MCAS	Σ	ADME	0754875992	Bernard.lubogo@michezo.go.tz
166.	166. CHARLES MDEME	CHAMWINO DC	Σ	DPLO	0784669360	Mdeme.charles@gmail.com
167.	JUSTERIA DIASHABOA	UCSAF	ч	CEO	0767374422	Justria.masha@ucsaf.go.tz
168.	168. JACQULINE MAKYAO	COSTECH	F	PLO	0744702248	Jacqueline makwao@costech.or.tz
169.	IRENEUS MATHIAS	PCCB	Σ	M&E	0766360128	Ireneus.mathias@dccb.go.tz
170.	COL. JUSTES KOTTA	JWTZ (BASE GOOD)	Σ	ZTWL	0768157115	Justeskotta@gmail.com
171.	HAMIS IGAZALIGA	NDOM	Σ	M&E	0768892020	Shabanlamu220@gmail.co.
172.	KATWIGA S. JOHN	NDOM	ш	M & E	0742936138	Katuiga.john@gmail.com
173.	HARSON MRENA	IRDP	Σ	M&E	0715901230	hhavejay@gmail.com
174.	. HAJI Y. JANABI	MOCAS	Σ	M&E	0713496196	Haji.janabi@michezo.go.tz
175	FELICIAN URASSA	IRDP	Σ	M&E	0757409421	ndagralaya@gmail.com
176.	DORICE KIZIGIRA	IRDP	ш	M&E	0752575716	Kizigira.dorice@gmail.com
177.	SELEMANI A. SELEMANI	TMA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0712638026	Selemani.selemani2@meter.go.tz

Sn	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	DHONE	
:						
178.	ISRAEL JACKOB	MINISTRY OF WATER	Μ	CHEMIST	0788866827	isaeljackob@maji.go.tz
179.	JOSHUA SIMON NYANGALI	KONDOA DC	Σ	DPLO	0678079980	Timbulasysmzool6@gmail.com
180.	JAMES MACHORI	IRDP	Σ	TUTORIAL ASSISTANT	0717675153	jmaghori@inv.ac.tz
181.	181. TAUSI JUMA	NDOM	ш	STUDENT	0678704039	Tausi.juma339@gmail.com
182.	JANETH HUSSEIN	IRDP	ш	MASTER'S STUDENT	0742323418	Janeth.hussen 88@gmail.com
183.	183. RITHAEL BAYO	IRDP	ц	MASTER'S STUDENT	0752196664	Ithael.ichebayo@gmail .com
184.	184 ENATH NICODEN	NAOT	ц	CEA	0713659900	Enath.henry@nao.go.tz
185.	ELIAS OCAROA	IRDP	Σ	MASTER'S DEGREE STUDENT	0624049920	Elias.quiyenga@gmail.com
186.	186. DOUGLASS D. MSHEMA	IRDP	Σ	MASTER's DEGREE STUDENT	0715196108	Doughlus.daudi@gmail.com
187.	JOSEPHINE D. ASWAI	UN - RCO	ш	M & E ANALYST	0767007213	Josephine laswai@un.org
188.	PANTALEON SHOKI	TANEA	Σ	M & E SPECIALIST	0765785383	Shokin2000@gmail.com
189.	KHALIFA KONDO	MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS	Σ	MP	0754220401	Khalifakondo@gmail.com
190.	KYANDO NEWTON	OUT	Σ	S/LEAW NS	0659267070	Nelson.kyando@out.go.tz
191.	JUMA HAMIDU	PBPA	Σ	НРА	0653424477	Juma.juma@pbpa.go.tz
192.	192. VICTOR MHAGAMA	MSD	Σ	PA DG	0744007000	Victor.mhagama@msd.go.tz
193.	JOYB. SAWE	MOWT(WORKS)	ш	PRINCIPAL STATISTICIAN	0713428419	Joy.sawe@mowt.go.tz
194.	194. DYNESS MWKIBETE	NDOM	£	N. GAVANA CHSS	0657873702	Dynes.mwakibete@gmail.com
195.	ROZALIA MTENGUA	ASA	ш	ECONOMIST	0753610631	Mtengwa.rose@gmail.com
196.	SOPHIA MJANGU	ЦТА	ш	ECONOMIST	0754617998	Sophia.mjangu@lita.go.tz
197.	GEOGREY R. MWANGULUMBI	NLUPC	Σ	ECONOMIST	0767449564	ngulumbig@yahoo.com
198.	198. WILSON MVURUNGU	PMO LYED	Σ	ECONOMIST	0769517828	Wilson.mvurungu@kazi.go.tz

5	NAME		CENIDED	DECIGNATION	DUONE	
.116	INAIVIE		DENDER	DESIGNATION	FIGNE	
199.	LEONCES TEMBA	PO PSM	Σ	SCDO	0754068801	Leonce.temba@utumishi.go.tz
200.	. JAMES M. MALLYA	PMO - LYED	Σ	SST	0717606583	James.malya2@kazi.go.tz
201.	. MGUNE M. MGUNE	MINISTRY OF ENERGY	Σ	ECONOMIST	0620584989	Mgune.mgune@nishati.go.tz
202.	. DR. TUMAINI M. HAONGA	WIZARA YA AFYA	Σ	MRATIBU ELIMU YA AFYA KWA UMMA	0653121842	Tumaini.menson@afya.go.tz
203.	203. JUMA MABUBA	IRINGA MC	Σ	ECONOMIST	0713184766	Juma.mabula@gmail.com
204.	. BECARDI PAULO	CUAMM DOCTORS WITH AFRICA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0798672928	p.belard@cuqmm.org
205.	. ABIGAEL MARWA	DMO	ш	MRATIBU	0652087242	Abigael.msenu@pmo.go.tz
206.	. RASHID KIDUNDA	DFD MWOBRO	Σ	ECONOMIST	0713313616	Rashidi.kidunda@gmail.com
207.	. ATUPELE MWAKALINGA	ACBF	Σ	M & E SPECIALIST	0784703975	anjmwakalinga@gmail.com
208.	208. THUWAIBA ABDALLAH KASSIM	NAOT	ш	ECONOMIST	0653896590	mthuwaiba@gmail.com
209.	209. DR. FRANCIS MWAIJANDE	MZUMBE UNIVERSITY / TANEA	Σ	CEO TANEA	0717763920	mwaijande@gmail.com
210.	210. Ms ZAKIA ITUJA	OPEN UNIVERSITY OF TANZANIA	ш	ASS.LECTURER	0716959300	Zakia.ituja@gmail.com
211.	. TAMARI MAHITA	DCEA	ш	ECONOMIST	0789973533	Tamari.magita@diea.go.tz
212.	. COL. SAID R. MKENGE	JESHI LA AKIBA	Σ	MSAM	0764972804	saidmkenge@gmail.com
213.	. PARICK KASANGO	RS - SGD	Σ	RCDO	0784171083	Pkasongo66@gmail.com
214.	. JUSTIN RUMANYIKA	BOT	Σ	НОР	0754287160	jsmanyika@bot.go.tz
215.	FRANK NYONI	NAOT	Σ	STATISTICIAN	0763403174	Frank.nyoni@nao.go.tz
216.	. FURAHA KABUJE	COSTECH	Σ	SRCO	0754391317	Furaha.kabuje@costech.go.tz
217.	. GIMONCE CHACHA NGOTUNYI	PO - PSRS	Σ	SLO	0655211763	Gimonge.ngutunyi@ajira.go.tz
218.	. JANE C. MWASONGO	MODANS	Σ	ACME	0785009979	James.mwalongo@modansi.go.tz
219.	. LUDOVICK S. UTOUH	WAJIBU INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC ACCEJE	Σ	ED	0769303040	lubovick@wajibu.or.tz

			CLADED			
.UC	INAINIE		GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EIVIAIL AUUKESS
220.	. MADEIS T. MAAGI	NSSF	Σ	PMEM	0699475120	Modes.maagi@nssf.go.tz
221.	. AMANI MBAMBO	CHANNEL TEN	Σ	PM	0742657614	Mbando.amani@gmail.com
222.	DR. ROGERS LUMENYELA	IRDP	Σ	LECTURER	0756732081	randrew@irdp.ac.tz
223.	223. HAWA ISSA	NDOM	ш	ME	0623312706	Issa.hawa@gmail.com
224.	GODWIN M. MASENYI	IRDP	Σ	STUDENT	0782972926	Godwin.masenyi@gmail.com
225.	225. JAMES NDOMBA	IRDP	Σ	M&E	0716809319	Jimmy.ndomba@gmail.com
226.	226. JULIETH CHARLES	IRDP	ц	M&E	0764024201	jully@yahoo.com
227.	227. ITIKA E. NGASAZA	MOHA	Σ	M&E	0713834068	itikangasaza@gmail.com
228.	DENTA GABRIEL	OWM	ш	ASS/D	0783113941	Deutc.gabuel@pho.go.tz
229.	229. MIRIAMU MRAGA	NDOM	ш	M&E	0742935990	Miriamu.selemani@gmail.com
230.	IBRAHIM MPONZI	TPSC	Σ	M&E	0756488610	lbrahim.mponzi@tpsc.go.tz
231.	. MAVERE TUKAI	MSD	Σ	DG	0787461650	Mavere.tukai@msd.go.tz
232.	MWALISU JOHN	TEMESA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0784715753	Jmalema90@gmail.com
233.	233. RAPHAEL F. KUNAMBI	MOROGORO MUNICIPAL COUNCIL	Σ	PLANNING OFFICER	0685546434	Rkunambi72@gmail.com
234.	BARAKA S. MLOLI	PLUSMORE INVESTIMENT	Σ	MARKETING OFFICER	0652726818	Baraka.mloli@gmail.com
235.	THERESIA RUGAIMUKAMU	PLUSMORE INVESTMENT	ш	EVENT COORDINATOR	0765034210	theresia@gmail.com
236.	. JANE ALBERT	PLUSMORE INVESTMENT	ш	EVENT COORDINATOR	0787033313 3	Janealbert777@gmail.com
237.	. ELIAS NKWABI	TUME YA UTUMISHI WA UMMA	Σ	PSC	0715660240	Elasi.nkwabi@psc.go.tz
238.	. MTENDO HAMISI BUTIJE	HOPECA PRODUCTS	Σ	MARKETING MANAGER	0741871219	Mtendo.butije@gmail.com
239.	DR. JEROME KAMWELA	TACAIDS	Σ	DIRECTOR M&E	0755555577	Babajerry 2012@gmail.com
240.	ESTHER T. SHALO	PCCB	ш	INV.OFFICER	0784198200	Ester.shoy@pccb.go.tz
241.	241. AHMADI ALLY	TBC	Σ	JOURNALIST	0654993785	Ahmed.mrambo@gmail.com

5	N A A F		CENDED	DECICNIATION	риоме	EMAIL ADDRESS
.110	INAIVIE		DENDER	DESIGNATION	FIGNE	
242.	SHABAN KWAVA	TBC	Σ	JOURNALIST	0767574636	Shabani.kavi@gmail.com
243.	AUGUSTA HOOJI	NIPASHE	ш	JOURNALIST	0712561279	Augustinehooji@gmail.com
244.	244. THOMAS L. SAGUDA	PO - OPMGG	Μ	SENIOR STATISTICIAN	0624090095	Thomas.saguda@utumishi.go.tz
245.	245. PAULO E. SANGISA	GAIRO DC	Μ	ADPLO	0787208350	ellynsta@yahoo.com
246.	SHARON SAUWA	MWANANCHI	F	JOURNALIST	0746999966	Sharon.sauwa@gmail.com
247.	247. JOCYE MWAKALINGA	AZAM TV	F	JOURNALIST	0753467267	mwakalinga@gmail.com
248.	HEN LESSOLY	AZAM TV	Σ	PRODUCTION	0743672350	Heri.kissy@hatail.com
249.	249. JOSEPHINE KUBE	NMB	F	MANAGER	0754625626	Josephine.kumbe@gmail.com
250.	SELESTIAN MASSAWE	SINGIDA MUNICIPAL	Μ	ECONOMIST	0786588544	primucom@yahoo.com
251.	EMMANUEL MAZENGO	RS - MORO	Μ	ECONOMIST	0654216832	mazengo@yahoo.co
252.	MAGESA MASHAURI	PLUSMORE INVESTMENT	Σ	MARKETING OFFICER	0754519924	mashemagesa@gmail.com
253.	MWIFADHI MRISHO	IFAKARA HEALTH INSTITUTE	Σ	RESEARCH SCIENTIST	0655766675	mmrisho@ihior.tz
254.	YONA L. MAKI	or - utumishi	Μ	ECONOMIST	0652100024	yona.maki52@gmail.com
255.	Dr. JOSEPHINE KIMARO	PS 3	F	DIRECTOR	0763144377	Josephine.kimara@gmail.com
256.	DR. ALMAS MAZIGO	DUCE	Σ	TanEA BOARD MEMBER	0754591615	mazige@gmail.com
257.	. Kassim ally	TFS	Μ	EXTENSION AND PUBLICTY	0786622582	kassim.ramadhani@fts.go.tz
258.	. EMMANUEL MAZIKU	ASA	Μ	AG. PLANNING M&E	0715083030	maziku.imma@gmail.com
259.	. ENG. SHABAN YAHAYA HAMISI	ТІА	Σ	ICTO	0653076794	fhabani.hamisi@tia.ac.tz
260.	FRIDA MKUMBO	TANESCO	F	PDEO	2689835220	frida.mkumbo@tanesco.co.tz
261.	MAGRETH LUKANGO	TBC	ц	OFFICER	0755538302	lukango.magreth@tcbbank.co.tz
262.	JACKLINE SHAYO	NBC	ц	OFFICER	0716525477	jackline.shayo@nbc.co.tz
263.	263. ABDUL SIJAONA	NBC	Σ	OFFICER	0743755922	abdal.sijaona95.gmail.com

ļ						
Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
264	JACQUELINE CHUMA	GPCL	ш	OFFICER	0652676195	jackline.chuma@gmail.com
265.	UPENDO KAPYELA	GPCL	ш	OFFICER	0626089014	upendo.kapyela17@gmail.com
266.	ROSE W. ABDALA	HALOTEL	ш	OFFICER	0629101803	rose.willy34@gmail.com
267.	EUNICE PANGA	PAROYI	ш	OFFICER	0710077761	purotiproducts@gmail.com
268.	BAHATI S. NJOKA	PO PSM	ш	OFFICER	0653342295	bsungi42@gmail.com
269.	PRISCA MATAGI	TMDA – C2	ц	OFFFICER	0767090800	prisca.matagi@tmda.go.tz
270.	. RIZIKI SHEMULA	TMDA - CZ	F	OFFICER	0786311126	riziki.singano@tmda.go.tz
271.	VICTOR KWEKA	DCC	Μ	OFFICER	0755266999	kweka.victor40@gmail.com
272.	FLORA KIMARO	DCC	F	OFFICER	0715171128	kflorah@gmail.com
273.	273. JUDITH CHIBAGO	DCC	F	ANO	0755091651	Judith.chibago@gmail.com
274.	BWILUKILO RAPHAEL	DCC - MAKOLE	Σ	OFFICER	0743518802	bwilukilo@gmail.com
275	ROBERT MTARO	MINISTRY OF WATER	Σ	HRO	0686224271	robert.masima@maji.go.tz
276.	PHILIMON BARAKA	NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE OF TANZANIA	Σ	ECONOMIST	0767374866	philimon.baraka@nao.go.tz
277.	. NEEMA NDUGURU	INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT	F	DEVELOPEMNT	0788882697	njudugure@gmail.com
278.	SOPHIA P. SWAI	MINISTRY OF WATER	ц	SLOD	0783795301	sophia.swai@maji.go.tz
279.	279. LYDIA MUHELA	PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION	ш	PLANNING OFFICER	078396939	lydia.muhela@psc.go.tz
280.	. MUBARI MARISHA	HALOTEL TANZANIA	Μ	DIRECTOR(BRANCH)	0629114164	mubari.marisha@halotel.co.tz
281.	JOHN MWANGALI	NBS	Σ	STATISTICIAN	0764708370	john.mwakali@nps.go.tz
282.	KASIAN NINGA	ECO ZA KAZI	Σ	M&E PRACTITIONER	0713645155	kniga@live.com
283.	HASSAN KITENGE	PO-PSMGG	Σ	DIRECTOR	0754324641	Hassan.kitenge@utumishi.go.tz
284.	NOLASCO KIPANDA	PO-PSMGG	Σ	DIRECTOR	0784436500	Nolasco.kipanda@utumishi.go.tz
285.	285. WILIX MAHENGE	PO - PSMGG	Σ	M &E OFFICER	0710581725	wilix.mahenge@utumishi.go.tz

Sn.	NAME	INSTITUTION	GENDER	GENDER DESIGNATION	PHONE	EMAIL ADDRESS
286.	286. MACDONALD KIWIA	PO - PSMGG	Σ	MGT ANALYST	0765484769	macdonald.kiwia@utumishi.go.tz
287.	287. SAKINA B. MWINYIMKUU	PO - PSMGG	ш	APDME	0756075252	Sakina. mwinyimkuu@utumishi. go. tz
288.	KUJERWA SILASI	PO - PSMGG	Σ	MGT ANALYST	0712381734	kujerwa.kabondo@utumishi.go.tz
289.	JANE KAJI	PO - PSMGG	ш	PMA	0713464629	Jane.kaji@utumishi.go.tz
290.	290. COSTANTINE MANDA	ESRF	Σ	TRAINING CORDINATOR	0788998492	Constantine.manda@esrf.org.com
291.	JEROME SANSONNETI	DIME	Σ	WORLDBANK		jsansonetti@worldbank.org
292.	292., ALOYCE RATEMO	REPUBLIC OF KENYA MINISTRY OF Devolution and Planning	Σ	DIRECTOR M&E		am.ratemo@gmail.com
293.	SUMAIYYA G. THAWER					sumaiyya.thawer@netcell.org
294.	HON. ESTHER MATIKO	PARLIAMENT AND APNODE VICE CHAIR	ш	MP		
295.	HON. JOSEPH KAKUNDA	PARLIAMENT AND APNODE CHAIR	Σ	MP		jkakunda@gmail.com

Virtual Participants

Sn.	NAME
1.	NOEL SELYA
2.	EMMAKULATA KOMBA
3.	NYANGUSI LAISER
4.	PETER MWANDRI
5.	RAMADHANI SHEMTANDULO
6.	REGINALD KWIZELA
7.	REHEMA MSAMY
8.	RITA MKAMA
9.	SALMA ATHUMAN
10.	STEVEN MHILIWA
11.	SUMAIYYA THAWER
12.	SUZAN JEREMIA
13.	TERESIA AUGUSTINO
14.	WILSON PETRO
15.	TUMAINIELY KWEKA
16.	BONIFACE MICHAEL
17.	CHRISPIN MLEKWA
18.	CLEMENT KIHINGA
19.	DINNA MCHARO
20.	DR. PAUL KAZUNGU
21.	ELIKANA MANUMBU
22.	ERICKSON BISAKALA
23.	FRANCIS NYONZO
24.	FRANCKAISE MAGODA
25.	FRANKLIN FREDRICK
26.	FREDRICK MTUNGUJA
27.	GABRIEL CHUWA
28.	GEORGE MWAKATOBE
29.	GLORY MALANDO
30.	GODFREY NGANGAJI
31.	GUIDO MSITA
32.	HASSAN AMANJE
33.	GWAKISA KALINGA
34.	HASSAN MUSHI
35.	JOYCE WILLIAM
36.	KASSIM ATHUMAN CHACHALIKA
37.	LIOBA TIGWELA
38.	LOSERIAN LAIZER
39.	LUCY KALLAGE
40.	MARERO STEPHEN
41.	MARK MAREGELI
42.	MATHEW NGUMIJI
43.	MHIVILE DICKSON
44.	MICHAEL JOSEPH
45.	MILLEN RINGO
46.	MOHAMED MOHAMED

8.0





TANZANIA EVALUATION ASSOCIATION

AUDIT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR 1st MONITORING, EVALUATION AND LEARNING WEEK

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	Intro	duction	2
2.0	State	ment Of Accountability By Tanea Secretariat	2
3.0	Audi	tors	2
4.0	Decla	aration Of The Head Of Finance /Accounting	3
5.0	Audi	tors's Report On The Financial Statements	4
6.0.	Incor	ne And Expenditure Statement	6
7.0.	Notes	s To The Financial Statements	7
	7.1	General Information on Reporting Entity	7
	7.2.	Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies	7
	7.3.	Income Received	8
	7.4.	Expenditures	9
	7.5.	Cash And Bank Balances	10
	7.6.	Contingent Liabilities	10
	7.7.	Commitments	10

REPORTING ENTITY'S INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL ADDRESS:

Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA)

P.O. Box 106268

Dar es Salaam

Tel: +255 22 2152586

Fax: +255 22 2152584

E-mail: tzevaluation@tanea.or.tz

Website: www.tanea.or.tz

BANKERS:

CRDB Bank,

Mlimani City Branch

P.O. Box 35407

Dar es Salaam

Tanzania



AUDITORS:

Afriq Consultants Ground Floor-TRES House TRA Rd, Mwenge P. Box 35641 Dar Es Salaam

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA), in collaboration with The President's Office, Public Service Management and Good Governance (PSMGG) organized the first Monitoring and Evaluation and Learning (MEL) week conference from 27th to 28th April, 2022 in Dodoma, Tanzania at PSSSF Conference Hall.

2.0 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY BY TANEA SECRETARIAT

The Secretariat of Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA) was responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, comprising the Income and Expenditure statement and the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The secretariat was responsible for and accountable for maintaining special MEL week event bank accounts, making and managing all transactions on behalf of other stakeholders, and also ensuring that all the received funds from sponsors are utilized according the approved budget and accounted for accordingly.

The secretariat is also responsible for preparing the financial statements, that are free from material misstatements, whether due to errors or misappropriation and apply appropriate accounting policies in preparing the financial statements.

The auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the annual financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

3.0 AUDITORS

The auditors, **Afriq Consultants**, were appointed as the auditors for this 1st MEL Conference Week Accounts for the year 2022.

SIGNED ON BEHALF BY TANEA SECTERATIAT BY:

Dr Francis Mwaijande Chief Association Executive

Djax Biria Executive Secretary

Date: _____

4.0 DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE / ACCOUNTING

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995, requires financial statements to be accompanied with a Statement of Declaration issued by the Head of Finance/ Accounting responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity concerned.

It is the duty of a professional accountant to assist the responsible organ to discharge the responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity showing true and fair view position of the entity in accordance with international accounting standards and statutory reporting requirements. Full legal responsibility for these financial statements rests with the Secretariat under the statement of responsibility of secretariat on an earlier page.

I, **Marero Stephen**, being the Treasurer of Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA), hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements of the 1st MEL Week Conference, 2022, have been prepared in compliance with applicable accounting standards and statutory requirements.

I thus confirm that the financial statements comply with applicable accounting standards and as on that date and that they have been prepared based on properly maintained financial records.

Signed:

Date: 13-06-2022

Position: TanEA Treasurer

NBAA Membership No: ACPA-PP 1977

TANEA

5.0 AUDITORS'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the First MEL Week Conference which comprise the Income and Expenditure Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 1st MEL Week Conferene and have been prepared in acordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent from TaNEA in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

TanEA Secretariat is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statements of the Secretariat responsibilities and declaration of the Head of Accounting/Finance. The other information does not include the financial statements and our audit report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate audit opinion on these matters. We have determined that, there were no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Secretriat of TanEA is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal control as the secretariat determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our audit opinion.



6.0. **INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT**

	Notes	<u>TZS</u>
Income		
Contribution received from sponsors	7.3 (a)	45,650,900
Contribution from POPSMGG	7.3 (b)	4,500,000
Contribution from TanEA	7.3 (c)	4,597,660
Payment of conference fees from participants	7.3 (d)	2,100,000
Total Income	-	56,848,560
Expenditures		
Direct expenses	7.4	53,223,400
Pre-conference expenses		2,789,260
Audit Fees		500,000
Bank Charges		335,900
Total Expenses	-	56,848,560
Surplus / Deficit	-	

The statement of Financial Income and Expenditure was approved by the Management of TanEA and were signed on its behalf by:

Dr Francis Mwaijane

Chief Association Executive

Date: 13-06-2022

Djax Biria

Executive Secretary

7.0. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7.1 General Information on Reporting Entity

Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA) is the reporting entity for the MEL Week Conference Funds. TanEA was entrusted with POSMGG, Plusmore Investment Limited and other stakeholders, to receive and manage the conference funds. The address of TanEA (the reporting entity) is shown below: -

Tanzania Evaluation Association (TanEA)

P.O. Box 106268

Dar es Salaam

Tel: +255 22 2152586

Fax: +255 22 2152584

E-mail: tzevaluation@tanea.or.tz • tzevaluation@gmail.com

Website: www.tanea.or.tz

7.2. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Public Sector accounting Standards (IPSAS)-Cash basis under the historical cost convention. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IPSAS and also has applied TanEA's accounting policies.

(b) Foreign currency translation

(i) <u>Functional and presentation currency</u>

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings (TZS), which is the functional and presentation/reporting currency.

TANEA

(ii) <u>Transactions and balances</u>

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions have been recognized in the Income and Expenditure statement.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, band deposits. At the end of this activity there was no cash and cash equivalent balances as all the funds were utilized accordingly.

7.3. Income Received

(a) Funds from sponsors

1. Tanzania Forest Service Agency (TFS) 2. Tanzania Commercial Bank (TCB)	12,000,000 5,000,000
3. Registration Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency	
(RITA)	2,200,000
4. HALOTEL	7,026,000
5. HOPECA	500,000
6. NBC Bank (\$ 5,000)	11,624,900
7. ECO MAKAZI	300,000
8. Tanzania Medicines and Medical Devices Authority	
(TMDA)	2,000,000
9. NMB Bank	5,000,000

45,650,900

TZS

69

<u>TZS</u>

4,500,000

<u>4,500,000</u>

(b) Funds from POPSMGG

1. Contribution from POPSMGG

REPORT OF THE 1st NATIONAL CONFERENCE

This contribution was paid directly to PSSSF Conference Centre Dodoma as part of the Conference Package.

	<u>TZS</u>
(c) Funds from TanEA/UNICEF	
1. UNICEF Contribution through TanEA -PCA Grant	4,597,660
-	4,597,660
(d) Conference Fees for Participants	<u>TZS</u>
(d) Conference rees for Participants	
1. United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)	600,000
2. Universal Communications Service Access Fund (UCSAF)	300,000
3. Tanzania Wakala wa Ufundi na Umeme (TEMESA	600,000
4. HOPECA	100,000
5. Individual participants payments	500,000
	2,100,000

7.4. Expenditures

<u>TZS</u>

Conference package	24,385,000
Designing of sponsorship materials	100,000
Printing of samples (brochures and booklets)	112,500
Printing of Sponsorship booklets and brochures	650,000
Travel expenses for Plusmore Investments Team in	1,290,000
Dodoma and Dar es Salaam	
MC and Rapporteur and Ushers	4,600,000
Printing of Badges	350,000
Printing of Banners	1,688,000
Badges Designing and Printing	350,000
Printing of Program, Profiles and Abstracts Documents	3,382,900
Audit Fees	500,000
Printing of Sponsors Trophies	1,395,000
Printing of Conference Bags	1,930,000
Masks and Sanitizers	240,000
Decorations	500,000
Media Coverage	1,500,000
Conference IT costs	1,250,000
Plusmore Investment Management Fees	8,000,000
Key Note Speakers	1,000,000

Total Operating Expenses

53,223,400

7.5. Cash And Bank Balances

TanEA opened special bank accounts at CRDB Bank, Mlimani City Branch, for receiving funds and making payments to cater for MEL Week Conference transactions. These accounts were account number 0150316749903 a TZS account and 0250316749901 a USD account in the name of TanEA Monitoring and Evaluation Learning (TanEA). All these accounts were special temporary accounts which have been closed and therefore, no fund balances have been maintained.

7.6. Contingent Liabilities

There are no any contingent liabilities following completion of the MEL Week Conference on 28tyh April 2022 in Dodoma. All payments have been made accordingly.

7.7. Commitments

There are no any commitments from either sponsors, service providers, POPSMGG, TanEA or Plusmore Investments after the activity end on 28th April 2022.





Permanent Secretary President's Office Public Service Management and Good Governance P.O. Box 670, Dodoma.